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F 000 INITIAL COMMENTS F 000

 On 2/3/22, until 2/4/22, a standard abbreviated 
survey was conducted at your facility. Your facility 
was found to be NOT in compliance with the 
requirements of 42 CFR 483, Subpart B, 
Requirements for Long Term Care Facilities. 

The following complaints were found to be 
SUBSTANTIATED:
H5630011C (MN80289) with a deficiency cited at 
F610.

The facility's plan of correction (POC) will serve 
as your allegation of compliance upon the 
Departments acceptance. Because you are 
enrolled in ePOC, your signature is not required 
at the bottom of the first page of the CMS-2567 
form. Your electronic submission of the POC will 
be used as verification of compliance.

Upon receipt of an acceptable electronic POC, an 
onsite revisit of your facility may be conducted to 
validate that substantial compliance with the 
regulations has been attained.

 

F 610 Investigate/Prevent/Correct Alleged Violation
CFR(s): 483.12(c)(2)-(4)

§483.12(c) In response to allegations of abuse, 
neglect, exploitation, or mistreatment, the facility 
must:

§483.12(c)(2) Have evidence that all alleged 
violations are thoroughly investigated.

§483.12(c)(3) Prevent further potential abuse, 
neglect, exploitation, or mistreatment while the 
investigation is in progress.

F 610 3/10/22
SS=D

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE TITLE (X6) DATE

02/25/2022Electronically Signed

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that 
other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.)  Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days 
following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided.  For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 
days following the date these documents are made available to the facility.  If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued 
program participation.
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F 610 Continued From page 1 F 610
§483.12(c)(4) Report the results of all 
investigations to the administrator or his or her 
designated representative and to other officials in 
accordance with State law, including to the State 
Survey Agency, within 5 working days of the 
incident, and if the alleged violation is verified 
appropriate corrective action must be taken.
This REQUIREMENT  is not met as evidenced 
by:
 Based on interview and document review the 
facility failed to conduct a thorough investigation 
when a resident left the 4th floor unit making it 
down to the 1st floor emergency department for 1 
of 1 resident (R1) reviewed for elopement. 

Findings include:

R1's medical record was reviewed. R1's face 
sheet indicated acute respiratory failure with 
hypoxia, hearing loss, depression, and dependent 
on supplemental oxygen.

R1's Hospital Paperwork dated 1/12/22 until 
1/15/22, indicated R1 required assist of 1 with 
cares and activities of daily living (ADLs) which 
included transfers and ambulation using cane and 
transfer belt.  R1 required care  was 
recommended for 24 hours a day, 7 days a week 
due to cognitive and mobility deficits which 
impacted safety. 

R1's Hospital Discharge Paperwork dated 
1/15/22, indicated R1 admitted to the hospital with 
acute hypoxemic respiratory failure and sepsis 
due to bilateral lung bacterial pneumonia, further 
complicated by systolic heart failure. Acute 
Hypoxemic respiratory failure present on 
admission and R1 required 2 Liters (L) of oxygen. 
R1 discharged with 2 L nasal canal. 

 1. Immediate action(s) taken for the 
identified problem include: 
Include actions that were performed to 
address the citation and the date the 
corrective actions were completed. May 
require the use of outside resources. 
As of 1.18.22 Interim Administrator began 
working with the vendor to ensure that the 
system was functional.    On 1.19.22 
Wander Guards and Wrist bands ordered 
to ensure functionality and ability to utilize 
them and delayed arrival to facility 
secondary to delivery concerns 
nationwide.

Staff education initiated on 2.10.22 
regarding Saint Therese s elopement 
Policy as well as where Wander Guards 
are kept and how to utilize the electronic 
system on the unit.  Staff have been 
educated on the behaviors that may 
present as future elopement risks to 
prevent like scenario from happening.

2. Identification of similar occurrences of 
the problem was accomplished by: 
Include actions that were performed to 
verify similar occurrences do not occur 
and the date those actions were 
completed.  
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F 610 Continued From page 2 F 610

R1's Admission Assessment dated 1/15/22, 
indicated R1 had decreased mobility. R1 had 
poor safety skills with walker brakes and sit to 
stand transfers. R1 needed to be reminded to use 
his walker and was physically mobile. 

R1's Progress note (PN) dated 1/16/22 at 4:50 
a.m., indicated R1 used a walker to ambulate to 
the bathroom. 

R1's occupational therapy (OT) PN dated 
1/16/22, indicated R1 was surprised he was 
winded after a walk in the hallway.

R1's PN dated 1/17/22, at 2:42 a.m. indicated R1 
was missing from room at 2:30 a.m. Staff looked 
for R1 in every room on the unit and was nowhere 
to be found. 911 was called to notify of missing 
person. R1 was found on the first-floor 
emergency room (ER). R1 stated he was waiting 
for a bus and was heading home. R1 came back 
to the unit agitated and stated he will go home. 
R1 took the stairs to get down to the first floor 
from the fourth floor. R1 sat at the nurses station 
with nurses station and wanted to leave the unit. 

R1's 72 Hour Transitional Care Meeting dated 
1/17/22, indicated prior to discharge needed 
equipment and supplies. R1 used a two-wheel 
walker with therapy. 

The Facility Investigation Report undated, 
included a list of tasks completed related to R1's 
elopement from the 4th floor; psychiatry 
evaluation 1/18, family aware, CP updated, Risk 
management done, tasks updated, email sent to 
R1's physician, room change closer to the 
nursing station, cognitive testing, and elopement 

1.18.22 Updated Admissions staff to 
ensure that any potential Guests that have 
significant cognition concerns, and or 
dementia and are ambulatory be 
screened out to sister Campuses.

As of 2.6.22 OT to assist in cognition 
testing upon their initial evaluation and 
this will be discussed in morning IDT 
meetings.

3. Actions taken/systemic changes put 
into place to ensure deficient practice will 
not recur: 
Include education that was provided, and 
by whom.  Include any policy and 
procedural changes that were 
implemented and any effective dates.   
2.5 through present DON and PRN 
Interim Social Services Provide on-going 
education regarding the facility s 
elopement policy, Wander Guard system 
and behaviors that present as though a 
Guest may elope.
Code Drills regarding a Guest who has 
eloped from the unit are in progress to 
prepare staff on all three shifts of their 
ability to demonstrate hands on the 
desired actions to take place if a Guest 
were to elope.  This process has been 
paused secondary to contingency staffing 
levels.
Admissions have been placed on hold 
since 2.16.22
4. How the corrective action(s) will be 
monitored to ensure the deficient practice 
will not recur: 
Include monitoring efforts such as rounds 
and systems checks, including frequency 
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F 610 Continued From page 3 F 610
assessment complete.  Staff (RN-A, NA-A, and 
NA-B) who worked the night of the elopement 
were interviewed. The document indicated per 
staff interview, no staff saw any sign of elopement 
behavior or saw R1 leave the unit.  The interview 
between NA-A and NA-B lacked details related 
R1's behavior. RN-A indicated R1 walked 
unsteady dressed in street clothes. RN-A last saw 
R1 at midnight and noticed he was gone around 
2:00 a.m. RN-A stated he must have taken the 
stairs since she did not see him go past the 
nurse's station. R1 was missing for 15 minutes. 
RN-A thought R1 was a normal TCU patient. The 
report lacked details to how R1 went from the 4th 
floor to the 1st floor with or without his assistive 
mobile devices or oxygen.  The facility lacked 
interview with emergency room (ER) staff or 
security staff who had found R1. There were no 
interview with other residents whom resided by 
R1 at the time of his elopement. 

R1's admission Minimum Data Set (MDS) dated 
1/21/22, indicated R1 wandered 1 to 3 days which 
put R1 at significant risk to get to a potentially 
dangerous place. R1 required supervision to walk 
the corridor; required limited assist for locomotion 
on unit and dressing.  R1 was not steady but able 
to stabilize without staff asset when he moved 
from sit to stand position, walked, and surface to 
surface transfers. R1 used a walker or wheelchair 
for mobility.

R1's care plan dated 2/1/22, indicated impaired 
cognition as evidenced by wandering. 

During an observation on 2/3/22, at 10:36 a.m. 
physical therapist (PT)-A pushed R1's oxygen 
tank while she walked next to R1 down the 
hallway. R1 walked slow, dragged his feet while 

and the responsible individuals.   
Elopement drills to be implemented 
Monthly beginning in March to serve both 
staff on-going education as well as ensure 
the functionality of the secured alarm 
system.
IDT meetings held daily will include the 
Director of Therapy bringing forward 
slums/CRP and or BIMs scores.
Admission checklist utilized by Clinical 
Coordinator and/or DON to include 
elopement assessment completed within 
5 days if not sooner. 
 

Corrective action completion date: (not to 
exceed 45th day after the survey).
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F 610 Continued From page 4 F 610
he pushed a walker. PT-A asked R1 to pick up 
his feet and not to shuffle when he walked. 

During an interview on 2/3/22, at 11:17 a.m. RN-A 
stated RN-A stated R1 was confused and 
unsteady when she saw him try to walk in his 
room with no mobile device or oxygen around 
12:00 a.m. on 1/17/22. RN-A stated R1's oxygen 
level was low. RN-A stated at sometime after 2:00 
a.m. she went to check on R1 and he was gone. 
RN-A stated she was shocked he was gone as to 
how unsteady he was when she saw him 
previously that night. RN-A called 911. RN-A 
stated 911 received a call that a man who fit R1's 
description was downstairs and asking for his can 
or walker. R1 was brought back up to the 4th floor 
and she had him sit at the nurse's station for the 
rest of the shift to keep him safe. RN-A stated she 
just assumed R1 went down the stairs as his 
room was near the stairwell and she would have 
seen R1 walk past her if she was at nurse's 
station to use the elevator. RN-A further stated 
R1 could have walked past to use the elevator if 
she was not at the nurse's station helping another 
resident. RN-A further stated she was the only 
nurse for the entire floor, so she was not at the 
nurse's station all night. RN-A further stated it was 
hard to believe R1 took the stairs from the 4th 
floor to the 1st floor as he needed an assistive  
mobile device and oxygen. RN-A further stated 
she was not sure when R1 left the unit. 

During an interview on 2/3/22, at 12:12 p.m. NA-A 
stated she worked the morning of 1/17/22, when 
R1 left the building and was found in the first floor 
emergency room (ER). NA-A stated she last saw 
R1 around 12:00 p.m. that night and at that time 
R1 stated he wanted to go home and did not want 
to be at the facility. NA-A further stated she was 
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F 610 Continued From page 5 F 610
not aware when R1 left the unit. 

During an interview on 2/3/22, at 12:30 p.m. NA-B 
stated around 12:00 a.m. on 1/17/22 she went 
into R1's room and assisted him back to bed. 
NA-B stated at that time R1 stated he wanted to 
go home. NA-B stated since NA-A was aware of 
R1's request to go home she did not provide 
additional interventions for R1 prior to his 
elopement. NA-B was not aware when R1 left the 
unit.

During an interview on 2/3/22, at 3:40 p.m. the 
interim director of nursing (IDON) stated she had 
done  the investigation related to R1's elopement. 
IDON stated she was not sure when R1 left the 
unit. IDON stated she believed R1 when down the 
stairs as RN-A told her during the investigation 
that. IDON stated to reference the investigation 
file for information related to the investigation. 

A copy of the facility Investigation Policy was 
requested but not provided.
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